
 

222

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

Audit Committee Agenda 
 
Thursday, 16 March 2023 at 6.00 pm 
Council Chamber, Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place, Hastings, TN34 3UY.  
Please enter the building via the Community Contact Centre entrance. 
 
For further information, please contact Democratic Services on 01424 451484 or email: 
democraticservices@hastings.gov.uk 
 
  Page No. 
 
1.   Apologies for absence 

 
 

 
2.   Declarations of interest 

 
 

 
3.   Minutes of the last meeting 

 
1 - 8 

 
4.   External Auditor's Update Report 

(Kit Wheeler, Chief Finance Officer) 
 

9 - 24 

 
5.   Chief Auditor's Summary Audit and Risk Update Report 

(Tom Davies, Chief Auditor) 
 

25 - 28 

 
6.   Status on recommendations made in the Interim Auditor's Report on 

Hastings Borough Council presented on 12 January 2023 
(Tom Davies, Chief Auditor) 
 

29 - 34 

 
7.   Notification of any additional urgent items (if any)  
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

12 JANUARY 2023 
 

CAB. 1 

 
 

Present: Councillors Rankin (Chair), Collins (Vice-Chair), Barnett, Marlow-
Eastwood and Webb 
 
In attendance: Tom Davies, Chief Auditor; Kit Wheeler, Chief Finance Officer 

(remotely) Simon Jones, Deputy Chief Finance Officer; Stephen Dodson, 
Transformation and Programmes Manager; Darren Wells, Engagement Lead, 
Grant Thornton; Andy Conlan, Engagement Manager, Grant Thornton 

 
 
162. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
None received 
 
163. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

Councillor Item Interest 
Cllr Webb All items Personal – Is an East 

Sussex County 
Councillor 

  
 
164. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 13.10.22  
 
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 13th October 2022 be 
approved as a true record. 

  
 
165. INTERIM AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT ON HASTINGS BOROUGH 

COUNCIL  
 
Darren Wells from Grant Thornton addressed the committee and highlighted the key 
points of the report. The report summarises the principal matters arising from the audit 
carried out by Grant Thornton along with other areas that they are required to give an 
opinion on. Auditing standards require the external auditors to report to those charged 
with governance, certain matters before giving an opinion on the accounts. 
Significant weaknesses in two themes. There are significant weaknesses in two of the 
themes that were asked to consider the arrangements to ensure financial 
sustainability and governance arrangements. There is one key recommendation for 
financial sustainability and governance. There has been set out a number of 
improvements and recommendations and we've made five improvement 
recommendations on financial sustainability, four on Governance and eight around the 
arrangements for three economy, efficiency and effectiveness. The report also sets 
out the reasons and the evidence to justify those recommendations that were made 
and includes management response to those recommendations. 
  

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

12 JANUARY 2023 
 

CAB. 2 
 

The chair asked for Darren Wells to explain the recommendations. Darren Wells 
explained that around financial sustainability the use of reserves is unsustainable. On 
Governance the prime concern was the depth of the internal audit plan and this being 
light compared to other local Councils. Also highlighted as part of the weakness in the 
arrangements that best practice is that internal audit staff don't have any other 
responsibilities for service provision 
  
  
Councillors asked questions regarding the light internal audit and how many should be 
completed. The Chief Auditor explained that COVID had a large impact on the 
capacity of the audit department. In hindsight some other staff should have been 
bought in. Darren Wells explained that neighbouring Councils have completed more 
internal audits than were planned. 
Darren Wells was asked regarding the risk assessment of Governance. Darren Wells 
explained the risk assessment was created in the planning phase. The significant 
weakness was found once further auditing was completed. 
The Chair asked regarding the action plan. The Chief Accountant explained that a lot 
of the recommendations in this report have already been actioned. A report can be 
brought to the next meeting showing what has been actioned and what is still to be 
actioned. 
  
It was asked which recommendations are of most concern. The Chief Accountant 
explained that the biggest issue for the Council is the ongoing financial security. 
   
  
  
RESOLVED (unanimously)  
That the report and action plan be accepted. 
  
Reasons  

Compliance with statutory requirements and good practice. The Council is 
accountable for the use of public money and continuously seeks to improve Value for 
Money. The Council's external auditors are required to submit a report to the Council's 
Audit Committee on any matters that are identified during their audit. 
  
 
166. HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND 

SECTOR UPDATE  
 
Andy Conlan from Grant Thornton addressed the committee and highlighted the key 
points of the report which presents progress on the 2021 audit going into also the 
21/22 planning processes. 
  
The 20/21 audit has move on and some finalisation on field work should be completed 
by the end of January. The March Audit committee is the target for the final audit 
findings report for the 2021 audit. Once those main field work sections are completed 
at the end of January, Grant Thornton are to go into planning for the 2021/22 audits 
consecutively with a view to taking a plan to that same March committee. 
  

Page 2



AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

12 JANUARY 2023 
 

CAB. 3 
 

Councillors highlighted the financial challenges all councils are having.  
  
RESOLVED (unanimously)  
To note the report 
  
Reasons  
To provide the Audit Committee with a report on progress in delivering their 
responsibilities as our external auditors. 
  
  
 
167. TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID YEAR REPORT 2022-23  
 
The Deputy Chief Finance Officer explained this is the Mid-Year treasury management 
report. This report advises the Audit Committee of the Treasury Management activities 
and performance during the current year. It provides the opportunity to review the 
Treasury Management Strategy and make appropriate recommendations to Council to 
take account of any issues or concerns that have arisen since approving the strategy 
in February 2022. 
  
The Council is managing its cash position well and it's not facing any cash flow 
difficulties. The Treasury management strategy was well tested by the COVID-19 
outbreak and again was found to work well. Total PWLB debt was 65.7 million at the 
30th of September 2022. That's down from 66.1 million at the start of the year (1st 
April 2022). The average interest rate being paid is 2.75%, and no additional 
borrowing has taken place this financial year. The minimum revenue provision amount 
or the MRP to be paid for 22/23 is showing as £1.7 million. This is equivalent to 2.37% 
of the 22/23 opening capital financing requirement that was £71.9 million. The value of 
our investments in the CCLA property fund have continued to gain after being affected 
by COVID-19, and the value is now above the initial £2m invested, while all the time 
it's continued to pay dividends. The CCLA Diversified Income Fund has also continued 
to regain the value it lost in the Covid crisis and now sits 9.4% below the initial 
investment amount of £3m, while all the time it has continued to pay its dividend. 
  
Councillors asked regarding deposits with Barclays Corporate. The Chief Finance 
Officer explained that it is very controlled by compliance with the CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code as to where we can and can’t hold funds and Barclays Corporate 
is a safe company to invest in at this time. 
  

RESOLVED (unanimously)  

Audit Committee is asked to recommend the following to the full Council: 

1) To note the Mid-Year report. 

Reasons  

As The Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires, as a minimum, a mid-
year review of the Treasury Management Strategy and performance. This is intended 

Page 3



AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

12 JANUARY 2023 
 

CAB. 4 
 

to highlight any areas of concern that have arisen since the original strategy was 
approved (February 2022). It is a requirement of the Code of Practice that the Mid-
year review is considered by Cabinet, Audit Committee and full Council.  
  
 
168. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY & CAPITAL STRATEGY 2023/24  
 
The Deputy Chief Finance Officer explained the purpose of the report is to consider 
the draft Treasury Management Strategy, Annual Investment Strategy, Minimum 
Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy and Capital Strategy and make recommendations to 
full Council as appropriate. This is to ensure that there is an effective framework for 
the management of the Council's investments, cash flows and borrowing activities 
prior to the start of the new financial year. The Treasury Management Strategy covers 
2 main areas and the first be in capital issues, which include the capital plans in a 
summarised form and the potential indicators and also the minimum revenue provision 
policy. The second area is the Treasury management issues, which include items 
such as the current treasury position, the treasury indicators which limit the treasury 
risk and activities of the Council, the prospects for interest rates, the borrowing 
strategy. The liability benchmark is new this year and is effectively the net borrowing 
requirement of the Council plus a liquidity allowance. This is shown in a graphical 
format over time, and it's designed to be a tool to help the Council manage its treasury 
activities. 
  
The Council is required to make annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) payments 
to ensure that capital expenditure financed by borrowing is charged to revenue over 
time. A review has been undertaken and has identified that changes in our calculation 
methodology could result in significant MRP savings over the next five years. It would 
also make the calculating of the charge more prudent, more in line with recommended 
best practice, and would be fair to taxpayers. The change is likely to reduce the 
charge for the current year by around £867,000. A separate paper has been drafted 
on this and is due to go to cabinet on the 30th of January and then on to full Council 
for approval. 
  
Councillors asked regarding the predicted level of debt by 2024/25. The Deputy Chief 
Finance Officer explained the expenditure over the next few years. The Chief Finance 
Officer explained that our advisors have said we are risk adverse and the numbers 
could change further on. 
  
Councillors discussed MRP and the saving on the charge with thanks given to the 
finance team. Councillors asked if the council will be able to meet its borrowing 
requirements with the reduced MRP. The Deputy Chief Finance Officer explained that 
it better reflects the time value of money and matches the consumption of the asset to 
the actual pattern of consumption where it's slower at the start but greater towards the 
end. This will be debated further at Cabinet. 
  
Councillors asked regarding the Capital expenditure on the conversion of 12-13 York 
Buildings. The Deputy Chief Finance officer explained this are just the final retainer 
payments. 
  
  

Page 4



AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

12 JANUARY 2023 
 

CAB. 5 
 

RESOLVED (unanimously)  

Audit Committee recommends to Cabinet and full Council that: 

A. The Council approve the Treasury Management Strategy, Minimum Revenue 

Provision (MRP) Policy, Annual investment Strategy and the Capital Strategy. 

B. The strategies listed are updated as necessary during 2023/24 in the light of 

changing and emerging risks and the Council’s evolving future expenditure plans. 

Reasons  

1. The Council seeks to minimise the costs of borrowing and maximise investment 
income whilst ensuring the security of its investments. The Council continues to make 
substantial investments in property, housing and energy generation initiatives, and this 
will continue to involve the Council in taking on additional borrowing. 
  
2. The sums involved are significant and the assumptions made play an important part 
in determining the annual budget. The CIPFA Treasury Management Code of 
Practice, previously adopted by the Council, has been revised to take account of the 
more commercialised approach being adopted by councils and the enhanced levels of 
transparency required. The Code has represented best practice and helps ensure 
compliance with statutory requirements. 
  
3. The Council has the ability to diversify its investments and must consider carefully 
the level of risk against reward against a background of historically very low interest 
rates. Investments can help to close the gap in the budget in the years ahead and thus 
help to preserve services, assist in the regeneration of the town, provide additional 
housing and enhance the long-term sustainability of the town. However, over reliance 
on such income streams would involve taking unnecessary risks with the future of the 
Council and its ability to deliver statutory services. 
  
 
169. STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  
 
The Chief Auditor reported to the committee and was pleased to point out that the 
Strategic Risk Register has now been mapped to corporate objectives as 
recommended by external audit.  Every month there are meetings regarding risks and 
any changing risks. Through this mechanism, any significant changes are promptly 
highlighted to the corporate management group. Areas of note are the continuing 
reduction in government funding, impact of the loss of key staff and extreme weather. 
  
Councillors asked regarding the CHART program. The Chief Auditor explained its 
highlighted as a possible risk now. Further information will be requested from officers. 
The Leader of the council explained that CHART is always flagged as a risk due to the 
funding being repaid in arrears. 
  
The chair highlighted the need for more concise reporting with easy-to-read 
documents. The Chief Finance Officer explained going forward that he would like to 

Page 5



AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

12 JANUARY 2023 
 

CAB. 6 
 

instigate more regular audit committee meetings. The Transformation and 
Programmes Manager explained more frequent meetings are planned to make sure 
that you get smaller bite sized chunks of information at more frequent times rather 
than having so much information at once. 
  
  
RESOLVED (unanimously)  

1. To review the Strategic Risks and comment as appropriate. 
  
Reasons  
As part of the Corporate Risk Management Strategy agreed by Cabinet, the Risk 
Registers are to be reviewed by the Audit Committee each year. 
  
 
170. CONTINUOUS QUALIFICATION: INVESTMENT PARTNER 

QUALIFICATION, AFFORDABLE HOMES PROGRAMME 2021-26  
 
The Chief Auditor informed the Audit Committee that Homes England recently 
conducted an assessment and found Hastings Borough Council to be of Good 
Standing. 
  
  
  
RESOLVED (unanimously)  

 That the Audit Committee: 

- Notes the report 

Reasons  

For monitoring independent third party assurance over the organisation 
  
 
171. CONSULTANTS / IR35   (VERBAL REPORT)  
 
The Chief Auditor informed the Audit Committee regarding consultancy. A complete 
report will be produced for the March meeting. 

  
 
172. CHIEF AUDITOR'S SUMMARY AUDIT AND RISK UPDATE REPORT  
 
To be discussed at the next meeting 

  
 
 
 

Page 6



AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

12 JANUARY 2023 
 

CAB. 7 
 

(The Chair declared the meeting closed at. 7.56 pm) 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 
 
 
 

 Report Template v30.0 
 

 
 

 
Report To: Audit Committee 

Date of Meeting: 16 March 2023 

Report Title: External Auditor’s Update Report 

Report By: Kit Wheeler, Chief Finance Officer 

Key Decision: N 
 

Classification: Open 
 
 

Purpose of Report 
To consider the matters raised by the Council's external auditors (Grant Thornton) in respect 
of their update Report.   
 

Recommendation(s) 
1. That the report be noted.   
 

Reasons for Recommendations 
To provide the Audit Committee with a report on progress in delivering their responsibilities as 
our external auditors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Report Template v30.0 
 

 
 

Background  

1. The report that can be found at Appendix A contains information on emerging national 
issues and developments as well as work progress and the status of key external audit 
deliverables.  

2. This includes the status of the audit of the Financial Statements for 2020/21 and 2021/22.  

3. It is expected that a senior manager from Grant Thornton will attend the meeting and 
present the report in more detail. 

 

Wards Affected 

None 

Policy Implications 

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following: 

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No 
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17)  No 
Risk Management     Yes 
Environmental Issues & Climate Change  No 
Economic/Financial Implications   Yes 
Human Rights Act     No 
Organisational Consequences   No 
Local People’s Views    No 
Anti-Poverty      No 
Legal                                                                   No 
Climate Change     No 
 
Additional Information 

Appendix A – External Auditor’s Report on Hastings Borough Council  
 

Officer to Contact 

Officer: Kit Wheeler, Chief Finance Officer   
Kit.Wheeler@hastings.gov.uk    

Page 10

mailto:Kit.Wheeler@hastings.gov.uk


P
age 11



Commercial in confidence

P
age 12



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 13

mailto:Darren.J.Wells@uk.gt.com
mailto:Andy.N.Conlan@uk.gt.com
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/services/public-sector-services/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 14



Commercial in confidence

P
age 15



Commercial in confidence

P
age 16



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 17

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 18

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/aeb9149f-7bf9-45f2-802d-ca7b055b457e/Major-Local-Audits.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2022/1232/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2022/1232/contents/made
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/cipfa-bulletins/cipfa-bulletin-12-accounting-for-infrastructure-assets-temporary-solution


Commercial in confidence

Delayed publication of audited local 
authority accounts

P
age 19



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 20

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/report-key-challenges-in-local-audit-accounting/
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/report-key-challenges-in-local-audit-accounting/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 21

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/local-government-procurement-and-contract-management-lessons-learned/
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/local-government-procurement-and-contract-management-lessons-learned/
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/local-government-procurement-and-contract-management-lessons-learned/


Commercial in confidence

Stonewall Gold Employer: GT’s LGBTQIA+ inclusion 
journey

P
age 22

https://www.stonewall.org.uk/


Commercial in confidence

Sustainability: Finance at the heart of decision 
making

P
age 23

https://news.un.org/en/story/2022/10/1129912
https://www.cipfa.org/cipfa-thinks/articles/sustainability-finance-at-the-heart-of-decision-making
https://www.cipfa.org/cipfa-thinks/articles/sustainability-finance-at-the-heart-of-decision-making


P
age 24



 
 
 
 

 Report Template v29.0 
 

 
 

Report to: Audit Committee 
 
Date of Meeting: 16 March 2023 
 
Report Title: Chief Auditor’s Summary Audit and Risk Report 
 
Report By: Tom Davies 

Chief Auditor  
  
 
Purpose of Report 

To inform the Audit Committee of the key findings from the recent audit of Creditors.   
 

Recommendation(s) 

1.  That the Audit Committee accepts the report..

Reasons for Recommendations 

To monitor levels of control within the organisation. 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



Report Template v29.0 
 

 
 

                              Summary Report to Audit Committee 
 

Creditors 

Background Information 
This review was undertaken as part of the 2022/2023 agreed audit plan. 

During the year 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022, the Creditors service 
processed more than 11,000 payments with a cumulative value amounting to 
£32.5 million.  

It is therefore imperative that the service is carried out effectively and 
efficiently in order to ensure creditor payments are made accurately and 
promptly. 

This aspect of the Council’s activities was last audited in 2018. The Service 
was then graded as A: Good and a number of minor improvement 
recommendations were made. 
 
Overall Audit Assessment: B – Satisfactory 
Most controls are in place and working effectively, although some 
improvements are recommended to reduce the potential for fraud and 
error and also ensure best practice and efficiency.   
 
Key Findings 
 

• For the year 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, 11,262 creditor payments were 
made with a cumulative value amounting to £32.5 million. At the time of the 
previous audit report 14,957 creditor payments were made, totalling £26.8 
million for the financial year 2017/18. 
 

• The Medium-Term Financial Position update (presented to Cabinet in 
September 2022) reported an adverse outturn for the purchase of supplies 
and services, with actual spending (£20.1 million) exceeding the original 
budget by £7.2 million during the period 2021-22.  However, it should be 
noted that some of the costs for supplies and services are often met by 
grants and other income.  Nevertheless, the adverse variance is indicative of 
increased spending on supplies and services when compared to the original 
budgeted expenditure. 

 
• In order to ensure that the Creditors payment process remains robust, this audit 

has made recommendations that will further strengthen the controls for 
requisitioning and approving the purchase of goods / services. 

 
 

Page 26



Report Template v29.0 
 

 
 

• Audit have also conducted testing, on all supplier payments over £500 for the 
period 01/04/22 to 30/09/22, in order to highlight any potential duplicates. In total, 
six duplicate payments were identified.   
 

• The cumulative value of all duplicate payments amounted to £7,901 but this 
figure contained four duplicate payments amounting to £6,490, which were 
sent to the same supplier.  To date, the four duplicate payments made to the 
same supplier have already been recovered and the Creditors team have contacted 
the remaining suppliers to request a refund. 

 
• Audit have therefore made a recommendation to reissue a briefing to all 

staff, regarding the importance of ensuring purchase orders are raised 
correctly and that invoices are checked thoroughly prior to referral for 
payment. 

 
• Additionally, a “Potential Duplicate Payment” report was developed during 

the course of this audit.  The report can be generated to highlight instances 
where an identical payment value is recorded for the same supplier.  The 
report also displays the invoice date and reference number, so that the 
Creditors team can check for any potential duplicate payments to the same 
supplier prior to each payment run.   
 

• Overall, Audit are satisfied that the Creditors system is administered 
effectively and efficiently.  Whilst further recommendations have been made 
to ensure that duplicate payments are minimised as much as possible, Audit 
are encouraged by the introduction of an additional reporting tool to highlight 
potential errors. 

 
Management Response 

 
     We accept the report and will be implementing its recommendations.  
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~end~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



Report Template v29.0 
 

 
 

Timetable of Next Steps 

1. Please include a list of key actions and the scheduled dates for these: 

Action Key milestone Due date 
(provisional) 

Responsible 

- - - - 

 

Wards Affected 

None. 
 

Implications 

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following: 
 
Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No 
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17)  No 
Risk Management     Yes 
Environmental Issues    No 
Economic/Financial Implications   Yes 
Human Rights Act     No 
Organisational Consequences   No 
Local People’s Views    No 
Anti-Poverty      No 
Climate Change     No 
 
Additional Information 

- 
 

Officer to Contact 

Tom Davies 
Email:  tdavies@hastings.gov.uk 
Telephone:  01424 451524 

Page 28

mailto:tdavies@hastings.gov.uk


 
 
 
 

 Report Template v29.0 
 

 
 

Report to:    Audit Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:    16 March 2023 
 
Report Title: Status on recommendations made in the Interim Auditor’s      

Report on Hastings Borough Council presented on 12    
January 2023  

Report By:    Tom Davies 
   Chief Auditor  

  Key Decision: N  

  Classification: Open 
 
 
Purpose of Report 

To monitor progress made completing the recommendations made by External Audit 
on governance.     
 

Recommendation(s) 

1.  That the Audit Committee notes the report.

Reasons for Recommendations 

External Audit made recommendations made on governance in their Interim Auditor’s 
Report on Hastings Borough Council received by the Audit Committee on 12 January 
2023. 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



Report Template v29.0 
 

 
 

         Background Information 
External Audit made recommendations on governance in their Interim 
Auditor’s Report on Hastings Borough Council presented to Audit Committee 
on 12 January 2023. 
 
The recommendations were accepted and it was agreed that regular updates 
would be provided to the Audit Committee on the degree of their 
implementation. 
 
The current status on those recommendations made (on governance only) is 
shown at appendix A.   

Timetable of Next Steps 

1. Please include a list of key actions and the scheduled dates for these: 

Action Key milestone Due date 
(provisional) 

Responsible 

Regular updates will 
be provided to Audit 
Committee 

- 28 July 2023 Chief Finance Officer 

 

Wards Affected 

None. 

Implications 

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following: 
 
Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No 
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17)  No 
Risk Management     Yes 
Environmental Issues    No 
Economic/Financial Implications   Yes 
Human Rights Act     No 
Organisational Consequences   Yes 
Local People’s Views    No 
Anti-Poverty      No 
Climate Change     No 
 
Additional Information 

Appendix A – Status on External Audit Recommendations (Governance) 

Officer to Contact 

Tom Davies 
Email:  tdavies@hastings.gov.uk 
Telephone:  01424 451524 

Page 30

mailto:tdavies@hastings.gov.uk


                            Status of implementation on External Audit recommendations (Governance)              Appendix A 

 
 

Recommendation per External Audit 
Report 

Management Response R-A-G 
Status 

Comment 

Recommendation 2 
 
The Council should reconsider the depth of its 
annual internal audit coverage to provide an 
appropriate level of assurance to members over the 
systems of internal control. 
 
 
 
 
 
In accordance with best practice, members of the 
internal audit team should not have any other 
service responsibilities. 
 
 
 
 
 
The Council should commission an independent 
assessment of its Internal Audit arrangements 
against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS) requirements and implement any 
necessary changes arising from that review.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Accepted.  We match the plan to resource and the 
depth of the coverage was more shallow during 
the Covid period because of our involvement in 
providing pre and post assurance checking to the 
Department for Business, Energy & Industrial 
Strategy (BEIS) of all Business Grant claims.  Our 
latest plan for 2022 / 2023 has re-focused on 
financial controls. 
 
Accepted.  The run-off of Procurement to the East 
Sussex Procurement Hub is now almost complete.  
A review of the Internal Audit team structure was 
already scheduled for March 2023. 
 
 
 
 
Accepted.  The East Sussex Borough and District 
Councils have agreed to assess each other on a 
reciprocal basis and this programme has already 
started.  It has already been agreed that the 
review for Hastings BC will be carried out during 
2023 / 2024.  We will then implement any 
recommendations to come out of it in the Quality 
Assurance Improvement Programme (QAIP) to 
ensure conformance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 
 
 
 

 
 
Amber 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Green 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Red 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
An external review of Audit is being 
commissioned. Procurement has 
been handed over to the Head of 
Strategic Programmes from 
03/03/23 and the relationship with 
ESPH strengthened.  
 
 
 
 
Due to its importance, this will take 
Longer to discharge – probably 6 to 
9 months from now.    

P
age 31



                            Status of implementation on External Audit recommendations (Governance)              Appendix A 

 
Recommendation 8 
 
The Council’s overall Risk Management Strategy 
and Risk Appetite should be reviewed.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Accepted.  The Audit Committee identified a need 
for more recent Risk Management Training and 
this was successfully delivered in 2021 to coincide 
with the roll-out of the new Risk management 
system.  This system is online, facilitates ‘drill 
down’ and is equipped with ‘dash board’ reporting’ 
so whilst our Risk Management processes are 
robust, the Council’s overall Risk Management 
Strategy and Risk Appetite should be reviewed.   
 

 
 
Amber 

 
 
Risk Management has been handed 
over to the Head of Strategic 
Programmes and regular risk 
monitoring process being put in 
place with the new Senior 
Leadership Team. 

Recommendation 9 
 
Risks within the Council’s Corporate risk register 
should be mapped to corporate priorities and the 
methodology for assessing and scoring risks 
included in the Risk Management Strategy.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Accepted – virtually already completely 
discharged.  The Audit Committee has received 
risk management reports in accordance with the 
Council’s Risk Management Policy and the 
highest risks always brought to their attention in 
the covering report both for the Strategic Risk 
Register and Operational Risk Register. Dash 
Board reporting was demonstrated to Councillors 
at a training session on 2 June 2021 and the 
whole purpose of this was show the high level  
risks, open risks, risks by service area etc. The 
new Risk Management system covers all of the 
above criteria and more except mapping risks to 
Corporate priorities.  This will be immediately 
addressed.   
 
 

 
 
Amber 

 
 
It should be noted that the Strategic 
Risk Register presented at the 
January meeting was fully mapped.   
 
Work remains to embed this across 
the operational risk register too and 
is in hand for completion by the 
summer.  

Recommendation 11 
 
The Council’s Fraud Risk Management Strategy 
should be reviewed.  

 
 
Accepted. The Council’s Fraud Risk Management 
Strategy will be formally reviewed and updated 

 
 
Amber 
 

 
 
We are aware that cyber fraud 
needs to be included and a 

P
age 32



                            Status of implementation on External Audit recommendations (Governance)              Appendix A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation 13 
 
The Council should undertake an Internal Audit of 
its Key Performance Indicators and Data Quality 
and consider the need to create a Data Quality 
Policy.  
 
 

and communicated to all councillors and staff.  
However, whilst the main document has not been 
reviewed for several years, we do review our 
arrangements each year and report those in the 
Annual Governance Statement.  The Internal Audit 
team comprises of 2 professionally qualified 
Investigators and 1 experienced Investigator.  
 
 
 
Agreed.  An Internal Audit of Key Performance 
Indicators will be carried out during quarter 1, 
2023/2024 before publication of the full year’s 
performance data.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Amber  

screening process for all 
government grants received. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Planned for quarter 2 2023.   

 
Footnote: 
 
Red        means not started 
Amber    means in progress 
Green     means completed 
 

   

 

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	Minutes

	4 External Auditor's Update Report
	HBC Audit Committee Progress report - March 2023
	Slide 1: Hastings Borough Council Audit Progress Report and Sector Update 
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Introduction
	Slide 4: Progress at March 2023
	Slide 5: Progress at March 2023 (cont.)  
	Slide 6: Audit Deliverables
	Slide 7: Sector Update
	Slide 8: Infrastructure Assets Update
	Slide 9: Delayed publication of audited local authority accounts
	Slide 10: Exploring the reasons for delayed publication of audited local authority accounts in England – Grant Thornton
	Slide 11: Local government procurement and contract management
	Slide 12: Stonewall Gold Employer: GT’s LGBTQIA+ inclusion journey
	Slide 13: Sustainability: Finance at the heart of decision making
	Slide 14


	5 Chief Auditor's Summary Audit and Risk Update Report
	Summary Report to Audit Committee
	Background Information
	Overall Audit Assessment: B – Satisfactory
	Key Findings
	Management Response

	Timetable of Next Steps

	6 Status on recommendations made in the Interim Auditor's Report on Hastings Borough Council presented on 12 January 2023
	Background Information
	Timetable of Next Steps
	Appendix A Status of EA recommendations_SDC


